WORKING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

CITY OF PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

AND

THE PORTSMOUTH SUPERVISORY MANAGEMENT ALLIANCE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section I	RECOGNITION	2
Section II	EMPLOYMENT AND TERMINATION	3
Section III	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	5
Section IV	PAY INCREASES, LOGEVITY, MEDICAL INSURANCE	7
Section V	ANNUAL LEAVE	9
Section VI	HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	10
Section VII	SICK LEAVE	10
Section VIII	HOLIDAYS	12
Section IX	EQUIPMENT	12
Section X	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	13
Section XI	AMENDMENT	14
Section XII	CONFLICT	14
Section XIII	COPIES	14
Section XIV	JOINT LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	14
Section XV	STANDBY MONITORING COMPENSATION SYSTEM	14
Section XVI	SIGNATURES	15
Appendix A	WAGE SALARY SCHEDULE	

The City of Portsmouth (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the Portsmouth Supervisory Management Alliance (hereinafter referred to as the "the Alliance"), in order to maintain the morale, equal rights, well-being and security of the members of the Alliance, hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I RECOGNITION

- A. Alliance personnel covered by this Agreement are those who are employed by the City of Portsmouth in positions identified in paragraph C below.
- B. Upon completion of the probationary period, each employee included in the bargaining unit will be given the opportunity to join the Association by completing the requisite authorization card and by agreeing in writing to pay the full Association dues. No employee included in the bargaining unit will be required to join the Association as a condition of hire or continued employment with the City.
- C. The following position classifications come under the provisions of the Alliance membership as set forth in this Agreement:

General Foreman Water Foreman Equipment Maintenance Foreman Chief Plant Operator Highway Foreman **Facility Foreman** Sewer Foreman **Pool Supervisor Assistant Chief Plant Operator** Parking Garage Foreman Parking Foreman 1 Water Meter Billing Foreman Construction Technician Supervisor Lead Mechanic Parking Enforcement Supervisor **Construction Project Coordinator** Parks and Greenery Foreman Arborist Foreman Utility Inspection And Maintenance Foreman **Treatment Operations Foreman**

Lift Stations Foreman

- D. The City hereby recognizes that the Alliance is the sole exclusive representative of the permanent, full-time employees of the City and who are members of the Alliance for the purpose of bargaining with respect to wages, hours of work and working conditions, and the Alliance unreservedly accepts and recognizes the necessity of the City to operate within their budgets as set by the City Charter as amended.
- E. The City agrees for itself and any of its authorized agents that it will not bargain with any individual Alliance member on matters pertaining to wages, hours of work, working

- conditions, transfers or promotions.
- F. The Alliance agrees for itself and its members that no member will bargain with the City or any of its authorized agents on matters pertaining to wages, hours of work, working conditions, transfers or promotions.
- G. The City will pay the additional cost of a commercial driver's license to any employee obtaining such license and subsequent renewal.

SECTION II EMPLOYMENT AND TERMINATION

- A. All Alliance personnel covered by this Agreement shall have a check-off of their Alliance dues upon the signed authorization of the Alliance member.
- B. All appointments of members of the Alliance bargaining unit will be made for a working test period of six (6) months subject to close review as to their competency to carry out their assignments. The City Manager may, upon request of the Department Head, extend this working test period to a maximum of an additional three (3) months if, in their opinion, it is necessary. This period supplements the formal examination, etc., and is the final determination of whether the person shall be given regular status. The City Manager may extend the probation for an additional six months, for just cause.
- C. The relative fitness of the applicants for appointments or promotion for a position within the classified service, will be determined by the consideration and rating of the following qualification factors: experience, general adaptability, special aptitudes, knowledge, skills, education and examination. All factors being equal, seniority shall determine appointment.
- D. All new jobs and vacancies within the bargaining unit will be emailed to all staff and posted for at least seven (7) days on the City's website before being filled. All internal candidates may apply and will be interviewed. The City will have discretion to hire new employees, including part-time employees, at the Step commensurate with their prior relevant experience, as determined by the City.
 - 1. Written evaluations, initiated by the City Manager, Department Head, or the individual Alliance member, may be used as the basis for conferences pertaining to promotions. All parties are to initial the evaluation following the conference to indicate the evaluation has been read, but does not mean all parties agree with the evaluation.
 - 2. Each Alliance member shall be entitled to access to their personnel file.
 - 3. In the event that a Department Head or the City Manager or their representative removes materials from an Alliance member's personnel file, a dated notation shall be placed in the file by the person or persons removing the material.
 - 4. No information contained in the files of a bargaining unit member will be released to outside persons or agencies without prior approval of the member, except for verifying employment, duration or employment or salary. Each bargaining unit

- member, during normal working hours, shall have the right of review and/or duplicate materials in their file.
- 5. Although management agrees to protect the confidence of personal references and other similar material, it shall not maintain a separate personnel file that is not available for an employee's inspection.
- E. When bidding on a new job (via promotion or transfer), the permanent full-time employee shall have a trial period of three (3) months in which they may request to be reinstated in their previous position.
- F. When it becomes necessary to reduce the number of employees working for the City, because of lack of work or funds, the City Manager will then decide which Alliance member will be laid off. Analysis will be in the following order as referred to in the Merit System:
 - 1. Efficiency;
 - 2. Demoting Alliance personnel to lower classification for which they are qualified; and
 - 3. All factors being equal, seniority will be the determining factor.
- G. Bargaining unit members separated from the service through no fault of their own, will be placed on a re-employment list in inverse order of the layoffs. Alliance personnel who are re-hired shall retain their seniority.
- H. The City agrees that it will not discriminate against, intimidate, or coerce Alliance personnel in the exercise of their rights to bargain collectively through the Alliance because of their membership therein or their activities on behalf of the Alliance.
- I. A bargaining unit member's seniority shall commence with their hiring date, provided the member is not discharged and is in the Department's continuous employ beyond the probationary period.

There shall be one seniority list.

- J. A bargaining unit member shall not forfeit seniority during absence caused by:
 - 1. Illness resulting in total temporary disability due to their regular work with the Department, certified by an affidavit from the Worker's Compensation Carrier;
 - 2. Illness related to their employment and not the result of their own misconduct resulting in total temporary disability, certified to by a physician's affidavit every three (3) months.
- K. If a bargaining unit member leaves the service of the City in good standing and is subsequently re-employed, they shall incur no loss of longevity benefits accrued prior to leaving said service, and all longevity shall be restored upon reemployment.

SECTION III LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- A. Bargaining Unit Members shall be entitled to the following leaves of absence:
 - 1. Leave may be granted to Alliance members for the purpose of attending conferences, committees or meetings of the like without loss of salary or benefits subject to approval of the City Manager. This leave may be granted to one member for three (3) days or three members for one (1) day each as requested by the Union.
 - 2. Two (2) days leave may be granted for personal business which cannot be transacted at any other time. Said personal leave shall be non-accumulative and based on the contract year usage (July 1st to June 30th). Wherever possible, twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be given and the leave must be approved by the Department Head prior to use. Personal days will be awarded on July 1 of each year. In order to qualify for the two (2) personal days, an employee must have completed their probationary period prior to July 1. In other words, a new employee will not get any personal days until July 1 following the completion of their probationary period.
 - 3. All employees shall be entitled to be eavement leave up to three (3) days with pay for a death in the immediate family.
 - B. An additional two (2) days may be granted by the Department Head, at their discretion, for a death in the immediate family.
 - C. Immediate family shall be defined as follows: Spouse, child, adopted child, parent, parent by adoption, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law.
 - D. Employees shall be entitled to one (1) day of bereavement leave to attend the funeral of the following family members: aunt, uncle, grandparent-in-law, niece and nephew.
 - E. Extensions may be granted by application to the Department Head.
 - 4. Paid leave for juror or witness service will be granted for the period of time the employee is unable to return to work. A copy of all or any subpoena along with any monies received for this service (other than personal expenses, such as travel) shall be transmitted to the City.

B. Leave Without Pay

Written leaves of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager as appropriate for a period of six months. Upon expiration of the leave, the employee will be reinstated to the position held before the leave was granted.

C. Accidental Injuries

- 1. The City shall provide and maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance coverage on each employee covered by this Agreement.
- 2. In case of accidental personal injury to any employee arising out of any accident in the course of their employment, the City will pay to the employee the difference

between the amount received from the insurance carrier and the employee's regular pay. Employees will see the deduction of payment on their paystub as "Worker's Compensation." In no event will such payment by the City exceed fifty-two (52) weeks.

3. If, during the incapacitation of any employee due to injury arising out of the course of employment, the employee shall be entitled to annual leave in accordance with this Section V. Paragraph A., then the employee shall be indemnified in pay or awarded annual leave at a later date equal to the annual leave lost because of the injury at the discretion of the Department Head.

D. Military Leave of Absence

Any bargaining unit member who is ordered for active military service as a member of the Armed Forces of the United States of America, or who in engaged in activities in the Reserve Forces of the United States of America, or State National Guard, shall be granted leave of absence to perform such military duties with the City paying the difference in salary between the employee's base pay and his military pay for said duty and without loss of leave time. Such leave shall be considered military leave. However, the payment of the salary differential shall not exceed fourteen (14) days a year and shall not apply to regular monthly meetings.

E. Family and Medical Leave Act: Independent of any other section of this contract, employees shall be entitled to leave as required by the Family and Medical Leave Act.

The Association and the employer agree that Interim Policy as implemented by the City Manager regarding the Family Medical Leave Act, Policy #30, shall be applicable to the employees covered by this agreement. It is further agreed that should management initiate a change to said policy that it will be negotiated with the Association and subject to all appropriate approvals (unless required by law).

F. Medical Appointments:

The City shall allow each full-time permanent employee time off with pay for a doctor, dentist, hospital or other medical related appointments not lasting over two (2) hours per appointment. Employees may take time off in half hour increments but will not exceed a total of 6 hours per contract year.

SECTION IV PAY INCREASES, LONGEVITY, MEDICAL INSURANCE

A. COLA ADJUSTMENT

Effective July 1, 2022, Employees will be compensated according to the Salary Schedule attached hereto at Appendix A. Effective July 1, 2023 a COLA Adjustment percentage increase to the Salary Schedule shall be computed which shall not be less than 3% nor more 5%. Effective July 1, 2024 a COLA Adjustment percentage increase to the Salary Schedule shall be computed which shall not be less than 2% nor more 5%.

The COLA Adjustment percentage shall be determined by the ten (10) year rolling average in the CPI-U for the Boston-Cambridge-Newton all items index as computed by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the U.S. Department of Labor for the most recent calendar year preceding the July 1 adjustment. BLS's calendar year for this index is November through November, it is not published on a December to December basis. The reference base is 1982-1984 equals 100 until BLS updates the reference base at which time the parties agree to adopt the official reference based as used by BLS.

Applicability After Contract Expires: It is clearly understood that in the event that this three (3) year Working Agreement expires without a successor Working Agreement being settled prior to July 1, 2025 that no further COLA adjustments after July 1, 2024 will be generated under the Working Agreement even if the Working Agreement has an evergreen clause. It is further agreed that continuation of COLA adjustments is not to be deemed "status quo" as the term has been used by the PELRB in the event that a successor agreement has not been settled by July 1, 2025.

- B. Any bargaining unit member working more than forty (40) hours in a work week as set forth in Section VI A shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times their rate of pay.
- C. An employee called in after hours shall be paid a minimum of four (4) hours at one and one-half (1 1/2) times their-rate of pay. Any member of the bargaining unit who is required to be on call for a week at a time will be paid a stipend two hundred and twenty-five dollars (\$225.00) for the week. The Water Chief Plant Operator called out during off-duty hours will earn one-half day comp time, subject to Supervisor's approval, with a maximum of ten (10) days of accrual and limited to one-half day accrual during any day.
- D. An employee promoted to a position which has a higher maximum hourly rate shall receive a pay raise for one step over their present rate upon promotion or to the minimum of the new position, whichever is greater, and such increase as is set forth in the Salary Plan, thereafter, based upon the date of promotion.
- E. All general increases shall be additional to the step increases to which the employees are entitled.
- F. Medical Insurance: The City will provide health insurance for all bargaining unit members for individual, two person, or family coverage as appropriate. The City will provide coverage under the AB 20 10/20/45 plan, with the City paying 85% of the premium cost and the employee paying 15% of the premium cost. The City also reserves the right to

provide employees with the option of health insurance coverage under the AB 15 plan.

The City will pay a health insurance opt-out stipend of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) per quarter to any employee who is eligible for health insurance coverage under the terms of this agreement but who opts out of such health insurance coverage and provide the City with proof of alternative health insurance coverage. Further the City will not provide health and/or dental coverage if an employee is already covered by the same or similar health and/or dental plan by the City or School Department.

- G. The Association agrees to participate in a City-wide committee to explore health insurance options.
- H. Longevity: Employees shall receive the following longevity bonuses payable in December to employees who are on the payroll at the time of payment. Longevity payments will be made annually at the level established below based upon full-time service with the City:

	AMOUNT OF BONUS
After the completion of 5 years of service	\$340.14
After the completion of 10 years of service	\$680.28
After the completion of 15 years of service	\$1,020.43
After the completion of 20 years of service	\$1,360.58
After the completion of 25 years of service	\$1,700.72
After the completion of 30 years of service	\$2,040.85
After the completion of 35 years of service	\$2,380.99

These longevity bonuses will increase by the 10-year rolling average CPI-U COLA calculation on July 1, 2023 and July 1, 2024.

- I. The City shall undertake to defend and pay any judgement issued against an employee covered by this Agreement arising out of an act of omission of the employee for personal injury, including death or damage to property while the employee was engaged in the performance of his duties.
- J. The City shall enroll all members of the Alliance in the HealthTrust 3F plan for individual, two-person or family dental coverage or equal and comparable coverage.
- K. The City shall provide a group life insurance policy for all eligible members of the Association in the amount of the current annual pay of the individual employee (rounded up to the nearest one thousand dollars), in accordance with the conditions set forth in the insurance policy.
- L. Should the parties agree in writing to establish a cafeteria style plan dealing in insurance issues during the course of this agreement such plan would only become effective if ratified by the Association, approved by the City Manager and approved by the City Council.
- M. The City will provide long-term disability insurance to members of the bargaining unit with no cost to the employee.
- N. The City agrees to provide tuition reimbursement to members of the barging unit who

complete courses relating to their current job responsibilities or as part of an approved career development program. Courses must be approved in advance by the Department Head and the Human Resources Department. Approval of courses will be dependent on consideration of the relevancy of the course to the employee's current job responsibilities, the number of employees applying for the benefit, and the funds available. Reimbursement for such courses will not exceed fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500.00) per employee, per fiscal year, with the total amount paid under this provision for the entire bargaining unit not to exceed the amount budgeted by the City. Once a course has been approved, the employee will be reimbursed upon presentation of written proof of satisfactory completion of the course to the Human Resources Department. Any bargaining unit member who receives this benefit must continue satisfactory employment with the City for at least one (1) year after receiving reimbursement. If a bargaining unit member leaves employment with the City prior to expiration of this one (1) year period, the employee agrees to repay a pro-rated portion of this tuition reimbursement to the City.

O. Employees shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule:

Hire - 12 months	Step A
12 - 24 months satisfactory service	Step B
After 24 - 36 months satisfactory service	Step C
After 36 - 48 months satisfactory service	Step D
After 48 - 60 months satisfactory service	Step E
After 7.5 years satisfactory service	Step F
After 10 years satisfactory service	Step G
After 15 years satisfactory service	Step H

SECTION V ANNUAL LEAVE

- A. Bargaining Unit Members shall be paid for actual time worked, all approved leaves and all approved holidays.
- B. Bargaining Unit Members shall receive paid annual leave as follows after completing one (1) full year's service:

```
1 through 60 months service ---- 6.664 hours/mo.
61 through 72 months service ---- 7.336 hours/mo.
73 through 84 months service ---- 8 hours/mo.
85 through 96 months service ---- 9.336 hours/mo.
109 through 120 months service ---- 10 hours/mo.
121 through 132 months service ---- 10.664 hours/mo.
133 through 144 months service ---- 11.336/mo.
145 through 156 months service ---- 12 hours/mo.
157 through 168 months service ---- 12.664 hours/mo.
169 through 180 months service ---- 13.336 hours/mo.
```

C. The accumulated leave allowed will be four hundred (400) hours per calendar year. Any unused annual leave at the end of the year may be applied to four hundred (400) hour cap. In the event an employee has accumulated more than four hundred (400) hours of unused

annual leave at the end of each year, said employee shall be paid no more than eighty (80) hours accumulated annual leave in excess of four hundred (400) hours. Payment will be made in February following the calendar year.

SECTION VI HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

- A. The work week for a Bargaining Unit Member shall be as follows:
 - 1. Public Works: Forty (40) hours per week, Monday through Friday. The City may modify the Monday through Friday limitation in this provision for vacant and new positions or upon mutual agreement with an employee.
 - 2. Recreation: Any consecutive five days totaling forty hours. Compensatory time or overtime payment at the option of the Department Head based on 1 1/2 times salary after forty (40) hours.
 - 3. Properly requested and approved paid leave, including properly requested and approved sick leave, will be counted as hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime. Additionally, during a declared snow emergency, once an employee works sixteen (16) hours without a break a service, any additional hours worked in excess of sixteen (16) hours without a break in service will be paid at the employee's overtime rate.
- B. Non-Bargaining Unit Members may work overtime only on condition that members of the Alliance are not available.
- C. Any Bargaining Unit Member who shall perform duties of a higher rate for more than five (5) consecutive days shall be paid at the higher rate of pay while performing such duty, but at no time shall any alliance member be paid at a lower rate than that at which they are classified except for demotion because of physical incapacity or under Section II, F.
- D. COMP-TIME IN LIEU OF OVERTIME: The parties agree that in lieu of overtime, a department head (totally within their discretion) may grant comp-time if the employee agrees to accept it, subject to City Manager approval. Comp-time, if granted, must be granted in accordance with FLSA requirements.

SECTION VII SICK LEAVE

Eligibility: Sick leave without loss of pay shall be computed at the rate of fifteen (15) days per year (or 1.25 days per month).

- A. Employees hired prior to May 1, 1990 shall be entitled to Accumulated Sick Leave without limitation as to the number of days.
- B. Employees hired on or after May 1, 1990 shall have Sick Leave Accumulation limited to 1200 hours.
- C. Employees hired after July 1, 1996 shall accumulate sick leave as set forth in Item B above,

but shall receive no payment of sick leave upon retirement, termination, or death. Employees in this category who have accrued at least eight hundred (800) sick hours at beginning of a calendar year will be entitled to be paid twenty four (24) sick hours pay if no sick hours are used in the calendar year and sixteen (16) sick hours of pay if eight sick hours are used in the calendar year.

PAYOUT

D. For employees hired prior to July 1, 1996, upon retirement from employment or termination of the employee, an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85.0%) of the employee's accumulated sick leave shall be paid to the employee. Upon death of an employee, while in the employment of the City, the City shall pay to the employee's estate an amount equal to one-hundred (100%) percent of the employee's accumulated sick leave.

BUY OUT OPTION

E. The parties agree that in the event the City Council appropriates money to use to buy out a portion of employee's sick leave, that each employee may accept buyout of any portion he or she voluntarily agrees to in writing based upon the terms offered. The parties recognize that if limited buyout funds are available, buyout offers will be made to employees based on seniority.

NOTICE PROVISIONS

- F. To be entitled to payment as set forth above, the employee must give the City notice by February prior to the fiscal year in which payment is to be made. If such notice is not given and the employee retires or voluntarily terminates employment, the employee will not be entitled to be paid for his or her accumulated sick leave until the first pay period of July following his or her retirement or termination or 120 days after his or her retirement or termination whichever is later. If the employee is involuntarily terminated by the City or leaves under one of the following exceptions notice will be waived and then the employee will be paid for his or her accumulated sick leave within seventy five days of termination.
 - 1. Resignation at the request of the City Manager.
 - 2. Disability retirement.
 - 3. Retirement caused be serious illness or injury which otherwise does not qualify for disability retirement.
 - 4. Retirement caused by a serious family illness where the employee is needed to attend the family member in need.
 - 5. Other circumstances that arise precipitously which make it impossible for an employee to meet the notice requirements of this section, only if the City Manager approves in advance of the payment without the required notice.

[Employees who give sufficient notice will be able to receive payout in two separate years].

SECTION VIII HOLIDAYS

Alliance members shall be paid at their regular rate for the following legal holidays:

New Year's Day Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (which is the State's Civil Rights Day) Washington's Birthday Veteran's Day One-half day on Good Friday Memorial Day Juneteenth Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day Thanksgiving Day Day after Thanksgiving Christmas Day Monday if Christmas comes on Tuesday Friday if Christmas comes on Thursday

In the event the City eliminates 1/2 day on Good Friday from the AFSCME Local 1386 contract in exchange for 1/2 day on Christmas Eve and 1/2 day on New Year's Eve, the Alliance will adopt the same schedule regarding these holidays.

When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be considered a holiday for Alliance members. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a holiday.

SECTION IX EQUIPMENT

- A. The City shall have the right to make regulations for the safety and health of its employees during their hours of employment. Representatives of a Department and the Alliance may meet once in ninety (90) days at the request of either party to discuss such regulations. The Alliance agrees that its members who are employees of a Department will comply with the Department's Rules and Regulations relating to safety, economy, continuity and efficiency of the service to the Department and the public.
- B. Each Department agrees to furnish raincoats and boots for all employees for whom such issue is necessary. The employees agree to exercise due care in the use and storage of such items. All replacements of previous issue shall be made only when an article is turned in or exchanged for one issued.
- C. Each Department shall furnish rubber gloves for all work on existing sewer lines.
- D. The Alliance and its members agree to exercise proper care and to be responsible for all Department property issued or entrusted to them.
- E. All SMA bargaining unit members will be provided uniforms which must be worn when

the employee is working if the departmental policy requires it.

Each department will be responsible for developing its own uniform policy.

All SMA employees will be entitled to reimbursement two (2) times per year, of up to one hundred and twenty five dollars (\$125.00) per reimbursement, for the purchase of appropriate, work-related footwear. Employees must submit a receipt to the City evidencing an appropriate purchase in order to receive this reimbursement. Each department shall have the right to establish specifications for footwear for jobs to ensure safety.

SECTION X GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. A grievance shall mean a complaint by an employee or group of members arising out of an interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement or conditions of employment implied but not necessarily stated in this agreement.

A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated by the member within seven (7) working days of its occurrence.

- B. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the aggrieved member to proceed to the next step. (This is specifically meant to apply to situations where a department head might try to sit on a grievance and not respond to it.)
- C. Any member who has a grievance shall put it in writing with their Department Head, in an attempt to resolve the matter at that level.
- D. If, as a result of the submission of the grievance, the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the member within seven (7) working days, the member shall set forth the grievance in writing to the City Manager or the Commission, as appropriate, specifying:
 - 1. The nature of the grievance and date occurred;
 - 2. The nature and extent of the loss or inconvenience:
 - 3. Their dissatisfaction with decisions previously rendered.
 - 4. The results of previous discussion.

The City Manager shall communicate, their decision to the grievant in writing within seven (7) working days of receipt of the written grievance.

- E. If a grievance is not resolved to the Union's satisfaction, the Union will notify the City Manager within 15 working days after receipt of the decision of its intention to arbitrate or the decision rendered will be binding on both parties. Arbitrators shall be selected according to the procedures established by PELRB. The parties will share the cost of the arbitrator's fees on a 50/50 basis.
- F. It is further agreed that any arbitration rendered under this contract shall be subject to the review provisions of RSA-542.

- G. An arbitrator deciding a grievance under this contract shall have no authority to alter, amend, change, add to or delete, the terms of the contract of the parties.
- H. For the proposes of this section working days shall be Monday through Friday excluding Saturdays, Sunday and holidays.

SECTION XI AMENDMENT

- A. The signing of this Agreement by the authorized representative of the Alliance, and the City shall constitute the effective date of this Agreement.
- B. This Agreement remains in effect until June 30, 2025. Should neither party to this Agreement initiate negotiations as required by law, this Agreement shall automatically be renewed.
- C. To promote peace and harmony, meetings between the Alliance and the City Manager shall be conducted at approximately 3:30 p.m.

SECTION XII CONFLICT

In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the existing policies and procedures of the City in regard to wages, hours of work and working conditions, it is agreed that this Agreement shall govern the relationship between the parties.

SECTION XIII COPIES

Copies of this Agreement shall be provided to all Alliance members along with any appendices at the City's expense.

SECTION XIV JOINT LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The City and the Union agree to create a joint labor management committee, comprised of an equal number of representatives from the City and the Union, for the purpose of discussing possible transition to a "Paid Time Off system" (in lieu of the current sick leave/vacation leave/personal leave/etc. system). This committee will be charged with considering the pros/cons of such transition and presenting relevant written findings to both City leadership and Union leadership. The committee's findings will not be binding on either the City of the Union but will be considered in the parties' bargaining for a successor CBA.

SECTION XV STANDBY MONITORING COMPENSATION SYSTEM

An employee required to be on stand-by to monitor and control the water system and/or the Waste Water System via a lap top computer or similar device during non-working hours will be

compensated as follows:

- 1. \$3.50 per hour while on stand-by to monitor and control including responses to beeper alarms, computer trouble shooting, etc. and payable whether or not any alarms go off.
- 2. When an employee who is on stand-by to monitor the system must come in to correct the problem, the employee will receive a three (3) hour minimum at overtime rate. [As opposed to a 4 hour emergency call-in set forth in SMA Contract Section IV, Paragraph D].
- 3. It is understood that an employee who is on standby to monitor the system will not be paid for mileage or travel time if he/or must return to the plant to correct a problem.
- 4. The compensation system set forth in #1, #2, and #3 above shall be subject to revision if necessary to efficiently deal with operating conditions. Such revisions would have to be negotiated although interim adjustments could be put into effect pending negotiations.

SECTION XVI SIGNATURES

FOR THE CITY	FOR THE ASSOCIATION
Karen Conard City Manager	David Lovely President
Peter Rice Public Works Director	
Kelly Harper Human Resources Director	
Tom Closson City Negotiator	

Approved by the Portsmouth City Council on Oct. 14 2022

Kelli Barnaby
City of Portsmouth
City Clerk